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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Fiora Business Support Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Fiora Business Support
Services Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows and for the year ended on that date,

and notes to the Financial Statements, including summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of the affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2025 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs") specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAlI's Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of
the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and to obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(}5,_



V. P. Thacker & Co.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusion is based on the audit evidences obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, Structure, and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With reference to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
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g) The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable

h)

.

V.

to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under
section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not
applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financiatl statements — Refer Note 12 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protecticn Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report,
that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management in this regard
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under
sub clause (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until
the date of this report is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.
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vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For V. P. Thacker & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118696W

—NBao. LD'@J-?

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner
Membership No.108053
UDIN: 25108053BMIPQB5016
Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 April 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Fiora Business Support Services Limited of even

date)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i a(A)

(B)

ili. a.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property,
Plant and Equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by
the management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed
in faveur of the lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a service company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical
inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limit from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has made investments and granted unsecured loans to companies
and other parties in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The
Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has not made any
investments in firms and limited liability partnership.

(Rs. In iakhs)
Particulars Loans/Intercorporate Advances in the nature
Deposits of loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
Others 21.15 15.01




V. P. Thacker & Co.

b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

iv.

V.

vi.

vii. a.

Particulars Loans/intercorporate Advances in the nature
Deposits of loans

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

Others 47.17 0.40

In our opinion, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the
terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and repayments of principal amounts and receipt of interest are regular
as per stipulation.

There is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given.
Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

There is no loan falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended
or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

the Company has not granied loans or advances in the nature of loans to
Promoters/Related Parties (as defined in section 2(76) of the Act) which are either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the services rendered by the
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

Amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues
have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities,
though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Profession {ax, Provident
Fund, goods and service tax and Labour Welfare Fund. Neo undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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viii.

There are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on

account of any dispute, except for following:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to | Forum where
statute dues (‘in lakhs) | which the dispute is
amount pending
relates
Delhi Value Added
Value Added :
Tax, 2004 and Commercial
Central Sales Tax Taézreds(_}(;r;tral 0.74 =i OGS Tax Officer
Act, 1956 S o
Delhi Value Added
Value Added .
Tax, 2004 and Commercial
Central Sales Tax Taxszﬂads (_)rzr;tral 3.51 F.Y.2014-15 Tax Officer
Act, 1956 _ o
Delhi Value Added
Value Added .
Tax, 2004 and Commercial
Central Sales Tax Tax and Central 5.85 F.Y.2015-16 Tax Officer
Sales Tax
Act, 1956

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the iIncome Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any loan during the year and there are no unutilised
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the Financial Statements, the Company has not taken
any loans or other borrowings from any lender and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix){d) of the Order is not applicable.

The company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associates or joint
venture (as defined under the Companies Act 2013) during the year ended 31
March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associates or joint
venture (as defined under the Companies Act 2013) during the year ended 31
March 2025. Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the, Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

XVii.

Xvili

XiX.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according
to the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of
materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of
the audit.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this
report.

The establishment of whistle blower mechanism is not applicable to the company
hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) is not applicable to the company.

The Company is not a Nighi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

All the transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act and all the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable Accounting Standard. (Refer note no. 8 to the financial
statements)

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have
an internal audit system as per the provisions of Companies Act 2013. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Since the company is not required to have the internal audit system. Accordingly,
the clause 3({xiv)(b) is not applicable.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicabie to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of
audit, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the vyear.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
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Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX. There are no amounts unspent in respect of corporate social responsibility towards
ongoing or other than ongoing projects and hence reporting under clause 3(xx) (a)
and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XXi. As the Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Associates or Joint Ventures,
clause 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

For V. P. Thacker & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118696W

B A den

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner
Membership No.108053
UDIN: 25108053BMIPQB5016
Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 April 2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Fiora Business Support Services
Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements of Fiora
Business Support Services Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction
with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and board of directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to financial statements issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAIl).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and those receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025 based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For V. P. Thacker & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratioq No. 118696V

r

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner
Membership No.108053
UDIN: 25108053BMIPQB5016
Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 April 2025



FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

(Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars Note As At 31st As At 31st
Ne. March 2025 March 2024
1. ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property,plant and equipment 4.1 B835.75 293.31
Intangible assets 4.1 1.67 5.89
Right of use assets 4.1 164.32 327.22
Financial assets
(i) Investments 4.2 2,510.35 3,020.83
{ii) Loans 4.3 27.55 38.02
({iii) Other financial assets 4.4 172.70 152.50
Deferred tax assets (Net) 4.5 262.51 170.49
lOther non-current assets 4.6 508.80 457.51
‘Tatal non-current assets (A) 4,483.65 4,465.77
ICurrent assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments 4.7 2,378.77 4,969.61
(ii) Trade receivables 4.8
Trade Receivable cansider good - Unsecured : 5,487.12 2,841.33
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 4.9 330.62 144.72
(iv) Loans considered good - Unsecured 4.10 20.03 21.65
(v) Other financial assets 4.11 7.92 10.15
|Current tax assets (Net) 4.12 155.49 225.64
|{Other current assets 4.13 266.56 439,11
‘Total current assets (B) 8,646.51 8,652.21
Total assets (A+B) 13,130.16 13,117.98
I1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
@) Equity share capital 414 213.90 213.90
b) Other equity i 8,995.54 9,477.29
Total equity (C) 9,209.44 9,691.19
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 35.79 218.63
(ii) Long-term provisions 4.15 429.06 334.69
Total non-current liabilities (D) 464.85 553.32
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 182.84 220.16
(ii)Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 416 20.34 293.70
enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 2,258.35 1,990.24
and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 4.17 70.68 84.01
Other current liabilities 4.18 751.53 140.83
[Short-term provisions 4.19 163.58 135.98
(Current tax liabilities (net) 4.20 8.55 886
‘Total current labilities (E) 3,455.87 2,873.47
Total liabilities (F) = (D+E) 3,920.72 3,426.79
Total equity and liabilities (C+F) 13,130.16 13,117.98

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For V.P. Thacker & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firrn Registration No: 11B696W

ot 2D re

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner (M. No. 108053)

Place : Mumbai
Date @ 23rd April 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

b4

Uday Madhukar Lad Director
(DIN :08075742)

Neeraj Basur Director
(DIN : 00402617)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23rd April 2025



FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income for the Year ended 31st March 2025

(Rs.in lakhs)
Note Year ended Year ended
Particulars No 31st March 31st March
] 2025 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 5.1 23,641.70 16,691.47
Other income 5.2 639.72 202.90
Total income (A) 24,281.42 16,894.37
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 5.3 8,494.25 7,402.40
Finance costs 5.4 29.43 54.60
Depreciation and amortization expense 4.1 350.41 306.06
Other expenses 5.5 13,199.98 7,801.72
Total expenses (B) 22,074.07 15,564.78
Profit before tax (C) 2,207.35 1,329.59
Tax Expense:
- Current tax 554.30 329.05
- Deferred tax (176.00) 37.02
Total tax expenses 378.30 366.07
Profit for the year (D) 1,829.05 963.52
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss) 5.6 (527.79) (410.67)
Income tax on Items that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss) 67.25 62.45
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (E) (460.54) (348.22)
‘Total Comprehensive Income for year (D+E) 1368.51 615.30
Earnings per equity share :
(1) Basic 8.55 4.50
(2) Diluted 8.55 4.50

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For V.P. Thacker & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 118696W

- - L T

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner (M. No. 108053)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23rd April 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S

Uday Madhukar Lad
(DIN ;:08075742)

Neeraj Basur
(DIN : 00402617)

Place :
Date :

Mumbai
23rd April 2025

Director

Director




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2025

a. Equity Share Capital

1) Current reporting period

(Rs.in lakhs)

[Balance at the beginning of the current reporting
perlod
5

Change In Equity Share
Capital due to priar
period errar

Restated balance at the
beginning of the current
reporting period

Change in equity
share capital during
the current year

Balance at the end of the
current reporting period

213.90

213.90)

2) Previous reporting period

{Rs.in lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the previous reporting
period

Change in Equity Share
Capital due to prior
period errar

Restated balance at the
beginning of the
previous reporting period

Change in equity
share capital during
the previaus year

Balance at the end of the
previous reporting period

1n terms of our report attached
Far V.P. Thacker & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 11B696W

SO

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner (M. No, 108053)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23rd April 2025

213.90| - - - 213.90
b, Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus
Equity Equity
component of N - instruments
Particulars compound Capital re::r:":l'm Transition | SECurities| oo o ral :".‘:’l Retained Reme;";’“";‘"" through ather Total
financial reserve P reserve Premium | o carve e earnings on Define comprehensive
instruments reserve reserve reserve Benefit Plan income
h 202 535.56 86.99 167.86 (61.77)| 3,393.92 | as2.52 | (973.43) 3,671.82 90,50 1,498.04 8,862.01
anges in accounting palicy or prior = e = = 5 - = = - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the F ey = = 5 = = a = -
rrent rep periad
- : = z 1540 - - - —|_eLan, - : :
dditian due to fresh issue of equity R . & o . - . - - -
ares
n::ldccmprehenﬂve incame for the Fy = < - = - - 963.52 (57.61) (290.63) 615.28
535 E Q ﬂ _4,443,94 32.89 1,207.41 9,477.29
[Restated balance at the beginning of the = " 5 =} . ] A = )
at reporting periad = =
“hanogs for the peniod = = % = = = = = = = =
Additian due ta fri 2 - = - - - - - -
- - - - - - - 1,829.05 (12.27) (448.27) 1,368.51
= n 1 (1
535.56 6.99 358,26 (61.77)] 3,393.92 | 452.52 | (973.43)] 4.4 20.62 759.14

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

~
Uday Madhukar Lad Directer
(DIN :DED75742)
-
Neeraj Basur Director

{DIN : 00402617)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23rd April 2025



FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
March 2025 March 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit/ (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 2,207.35 1,329.59
[Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 350.41 306.06
Loss/ (profit) on sale of assets (2.21) (1.86)
Provision for doubtful debts & bad debts written off/(written back) 26.36 -
lIRemeasurements of the defined benefit plans (17.31) (81.27)]
(Profit)/Loss on sale of current investments (145.72) =
Gain on Lease modification/termination - (4.21)
Unrealised gain on revaluation of mutual fund (273.72) (161.62)
Finance income and cost (net) 3.55 24.28
Dividend from Investments (190.70) (11.25)
Interest on 8% cumulative redeemable Pref. shares = 6.59
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,958.01 1,406.31
Adjustment for :

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables (2,672.15) (946.30)
(Increase )/ Decrease in Other current financial assets 18.40 13.82
(Increase)/Decrease Other non current financial assets (9.72) (5.81)
(Increase)/Decrease Other current assets 172.56 (243.25)
(Increase)/Decrease Other non-current assets 0.29 0.14
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Increase/(Decrease) Long term Provisions 94.37 167.50
Increase/(Decrease) Trade payables (5.25) 1,274.55
Increase/(Decrease) Other current financial liabilities (13.34) 70.64
[Increase/(Decrease) Other current liabilities 610.70 (111.78)
Increase/(Decrease) Short-term Provisions 27.60 25.55
(Cash generated from operations 181.47 1,651.37
Income taxes paid (net of refund, if any) (375.50) (357.06)
Net cash flow used in operating activities (A) (194.03) 1,294.31
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment & Investment Property (736.18) (165.26)
Investment in Mutual funds (3,383.00) (611.00)
Proceeds from sale of Investments 6,393.28 -
Proceeds from disposal of PPE 12.68 4.33
Interest received others 2.30 2.63
Dividend from Investments 190.69 11.25
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 2,479.77 (758.05)
IC. Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (29.43) (48.00)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (220.16) (210.67)
Redemption of Preference share = (191.40)|
Dividend paid on preference share (1,850.25) (21.90)
Net cash flow fram financing activities (C) (2,099.84) (471.97)
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 185.90 64.29
(Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 144.72 80.43
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 330.62 144.72
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 330.62 144.72
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 330.62 144,72

Notes:
i) All figures in brackets are outflows

ii) Cash and cash equivalents consist of balance with bank & cash on hand as detailed in note no. 4.9
iii) During Current year company has spent Rs. 14.40 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 7.48 Lakhs) towards Corporate Social

Responsibility (Refer Note 18).

In terms of our report attached
For V.P. Thacker & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 118696W

ARar 2 (e

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner (M. No. 108053)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23rd April 2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uday Madhukar Lad  Director

(DIN :08075742)

Neeraj Basur
(DIN : 00402617)
Place : Mumbai

Date : 23rd April 2025

Director



FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 1

Company information

Fiora Business Support Services Limited ("the Company") (CIN U74110PN2007PLC172292) is a Public Limited company domiciled in India. Its
shares are held by Trent Limited (Holding Company), which is listed on the Stock Exchanges. The registered office of the company is located at
"Gat No.810/811, Village Wagholi, Taluka Haweli, Pune, 412207, Maharashtra {India)",

The company is rendering various services like Accounting, Payroll, HR Consultancy, Merchandise, Stock Control, sourcing, warehousing,
distribution, clearing and forwarding, IT services, Facility Management Service and other ancillary services to its holding company and other group

companies.

Note 2

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and referred under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 23rd April, 2025.

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values or amortised cost, at the end of reporting period (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments). Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) in lakhs, which is also the Company’'s functional currency. All values are
rounded off to the nearest INR lakhs up to two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of material accounting policy information
a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

« It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

b) Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Foreign Currency transactions are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items are retranslated at the exchange rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value are
retranslated at the rate prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which they arise

¢) Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instrument at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to seil the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibie by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2(if levell feed is not available / appropriate) — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

s Level 3 (if levell and 2 feed is not available / appropriate) — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

The Company’s Board/Board Committee/Director approves the policies for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative
instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held as part of
discontinued operations. Where seen required / appropriate external valuers are involved. The Board/Board Committee reviews the valuation
results . This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

d) Revenue recognition
Operating revenues

Revenue from Services rendered is recognised as and when the services are rendered and the related costs are incurred.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment has been established. (provided that the economic benefit
will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

e) Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with
the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments/ appeals.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or Equity is recognised directly in OCI/ equity and not
in the statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities.

&




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

f) Property, plant and equipment

All items of Property, Plant and Equipment, including freehold land, are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, Property,
Plant and Equipment other than freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. The carrying values of Property, Plant and Equipment are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable,

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the Property, Plant and Equipment and borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying Property, Plant and Equipment. The accounting policy for borrowing costs is set out in note (h) below. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset
after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment has been provided on the "straight line" basis as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule IT
to the Companies Act, 2013, Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Assets Useful life in years
Plant & Equipment 15/12/7/10
Furniture & Fixtures 7/10
Leasehold Improvements Over the period of lease
Office Equipment 5
Computers / Computer server 3/6

Vehicles 8

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal, Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in Statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is de-recognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are initially recorded at cost.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life is reviewed at the end of each reporting period with the effect of any changes is estimate being accounted for on prospective basis. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful life of Intangible Assets :- The estimated useful life is as follows:

Assets | Useful life in years
Computer software | 5

h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

i) Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office

furniture and telephones).
For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

« Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

%’,‘




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

¢ Variable lease payments that depend an an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

« The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

« The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
« Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consclidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective
interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

s The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

» The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease
payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

s A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the
commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a
purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The Company applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as
described in the *Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The
related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are
included in the line “Other expenses” in profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, IND AS 116 permits a lessee not to separate lease and non-lease components, and instead account for any lease
and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Company has used this practical expedient and has recognised single
ROU for entire lease and non lease components.

j) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying value of assets/cash generating units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any such indication exists the
Company estimates the asset's / cash generating unit's recoverable amount and impairment is recognised if the carrying amount of these
assets/cash generating units exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value
in use. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

&_




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

1) Contingencies

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require
an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

m) Employee benefits

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Pensions and other post-employment benefits are classified as either defined
contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under defined contribution plan, the Company’s only obligation is to pay a fixed amount. Under a
defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The present value of the defined benefit
obligations is calculated by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit method. The Company has the following employee benefit

plans:

(i) Contribution to Provident fund, family pension fund, ESIC and Labor welfare fund:
Company’s contributions during the year towards Government administered Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund, ESIC and Labor Welfare

Fund are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
(ii) Defined Benefit Plan

Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. For defined benefit retirement
benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out
at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with a
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Past service
cost is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined Benefit cost are categorised as below:

1) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements):

2) Net interest expenses or income and
3) Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in statement of profit and loss in the line item (‘employee benefits
expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs,

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the statement of financial position represents the actuarial deficit or surplus in the Company’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. Company provides following defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, applicable for Indian companies, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to
eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company.
The gratuity fund is managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a
defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognises actuarial
gains and losses immediately in other comprehensive income, net of taxes.

iii) Other retirement benefit

Provision for other retirement/ post retirement benefits in the forms of long term compensated absences (leave encashment) is made on the
basis of actuarial valuation.

n) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are

added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value (purchase value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset) amortised cost or at cost. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at
transaction price.

Subsequent measurement :

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in five categories:

¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

« Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

« Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

s Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
» Equity instruments measured at cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amartised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for coliecting contractual cash flows, and
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized
cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI or FVTPL

All equity instruments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of instruments. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L,

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the

financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with

defaults.




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” ar “other financial liabilities”.

(a) Financial liabilities are classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” if they are held for trading or if they are
designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. These are measured initially at fair value with subsequent changes
recognized in profit or loss. Fair value is determined as per IND AS 113 *fair value measurement’.

(b) Other financial liabilities, including loans and borrowing, are initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.

Subsequent measurement
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 is satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has
not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is as intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

o) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three

months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

p) Earning Per Share (EPS)

i)Basic EPS

Basic Earnings Per Share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any)
attributable to equity share holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

ii)Diluted EPS

Diluted Earnings Per Share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any)
attributable to equity share holders of the Company as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the
diluted potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

8/_




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 3
(1) Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's The financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when The financial statements
were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is
recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future year affected.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the foliowing Judgments, estimates and
assumptions which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in The financial statements:

i) Provision for doubtful advances and trade receivables: The company is not significantly exposed to credit risk. Presently
company is providing services to group company. Since the amount involved is not material, the Company does not calculate any credit
loss for trade receivables and advances to parties as required under Ind AS 109 'Financial Instrument' however, the company provides
for doubtful advances and trade receivables based on its judgment about recoverability of amount.

ii) Defined benefit plans

The cost and present obligation of Defined benefit gratuity plan and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valuation. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to complexities involved in the valuation and its long
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are made at each reporting

date.
iii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuations are taken from
observable sources where possible, but where this is not feasibie, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments
include considerations of various inputs including liquidity risk, credit risk , volatility etc. Changes in assumptions / judgments about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

iv)Taxes

Deferred tax, subject to the consideration of prudence, is recognised on temporary differences between the taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future tax income will be available against which such deferred
tax assets can be realized.

v)Impairment of financial assets: The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

vi)Discounting of Employee Loan : The company is not significantly exposed to the credit risk on loans given to employees. Since the
amount involved is not material no adjustment has been made under Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments”.

vii)Discounting of lease payments and deposits: The lease payments and deposits are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses applicable incremental
borrowing rate as independently sourced.
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 4.1
Property, plant and equipment
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars . (R Fur_nlture & Pl.ant E Computer O_ffice Vehicle Total
improvements Fixtures Equipment equipment
As at 31st March 2023 35.89 50.28 19.77 411.10 62.85 116.36 696.25
Additions 30.05 s = 49.99 20.36 47.62 165.25
Dispasals / Transfers = (2.06) (0.60) (3.00) (1.84) (11.92) (19.42)
As at 31st March 2024 65.94 65.45 19.17 458.09 81.37 152.06 842.08
Additions 371.11 100.27 65.89 68.84 87.12 41.76 734.99
Dispaosals / Transfers (35.73) (19.25) = (7.52) (12.48) (36.06) (111.04)
As at 31st March 2025 401.32 146.47 85.06 519.41 156.01 157.76 1,466.03
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 31st March 2023 34.71 39.33 15.09 225.86 55.46 72.91 443.36
Depreciation charge for the Period 2.95 2.60 0.95 99.66 3.69 12.51 122.36
Disposals / Transfers = (1.95) (0.46) (3.00) (1.78) (9.76) (16.95)
As at 31st March 2024 37.66 39.98 15.58 322.52 57.37 75.66 548.77
Depreciation charge for the Period 36.73 9.67 3.78 99.63 17.25 15.03 182.09
Dispaosals / Transfers (34.16) (18.85) = (7.52) (12.48) (27.57) (100.58)
As at 31st March 2025 40.23 30.80 19.36 414.63 62.14 63.12 630.28
Net book value
As at 31st March 2024 28.28 25.47 3.59 135.57 24.00 76.40 293.31
As at 31st March 2025 361.09 115.67 65.70 104.78 93.87 94.64 835.75
Right of use assets
(Rs.in lakhs)
- Right of use: Total
buildings
Cost
As at 31st March 2023 1,137.96 1,137.96
Additions 56.39 56.39
Reclassification - -
Disposals (94.83) (94.83)
As at 31st March 2024 1,099.52 1,099.52
Additions 824.38 824.38
Reclassification - -
Disposals (824.38) (824.38)
As at 31st March 2025 1,099.52 1,099.52
Depreciation
As at 31st March 2023 627.64 627.64
Depreciation for the Period 177.33 177.33
Disposals / Transfers (32.67) (32.67)
As at 31st March 2024 772.30 772.30
Depreciation for the Period 162.90 162.90
Disposals / Transfers - =
As at 31st March 2025 935.20 935.20
Net block
As at 31st March 2024 327.22 327.22
As at 31st March 2025 164.32 164.32
Intangible assets
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars Compeer
software
As at 31st March 2023 209.46
Additions -
Disposals / Transfers -
As at 31st March 2024 209.46
[Additions 1.21
Disposals / Transfers -
As at 31st March 2025 210.67
Accumulated amortisation: -
As at 31st March 2023 197.18
Amortisation charge for the period 6.39
Disposals / Transfers -
As at 31st March 2024 203.57
(Amortisation charge for the period 5.43
Disposals / Transfers =
As at 31st March 2025 209.00
Net book value
As at 31st March 2024 5.89
As at 31st March 2025 1.67




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 4.2
Financial asset - Non Current investments
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st March 2025 As At 31st March 2024
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

A. Investments in equity instruments
Unquoted investments i - s =
Investments in other companies - at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income
Equity shares of Tata International Ltd 4,500 2,230.02 4,500 2,740.50
Total Investments in Equity shares 4,500 2,230.02 4,500 2,740.50
Investment in Preference Shares-At Cost
6% Series B Cum Red NCPS - Nahar 29,111 280.33 29,111 280.33
Total investments in Preference Share shares 29,111 280.33 28,111 280.33
Total 33,611 2,510.35 33,611 3,020.83

* Trent Brands Limited is merged with Nahar Retail Trading Services Limited vide NCLT order dated 27.02.2023. Consequently the company
has received 2,61,828 Series A Preference shares and 29,111 Series B Preference shares of Nahar Retail Trading Services Limited with Face

value of Rs.1,000 each against equity shares held
Note 4.3
Financial assets - loans

(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Unsecured Considered good
Loans to employees 27.55 38.02
Total 27.55 38.02
Note 4.4
Other Financial Assets
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Unsecured, Considered good
Security Deposits
Deposits for Premises 172.70 152.50
172.70 152.50
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
Security Depaosits
Deposits for Premises 26.36 -
26.36 -
Less - Provision for doubtful receivables (26.36)
Total 172.70 152.50
Note 4.5
Deferred Tax
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Deferred tax liabilities arising due to temporary differences
pertaining to:
Investments valued at fair value 169.96 265.58
Right of use assets 23.90 71.33
193.86 336.91
Deferred tax assets arising due to temporary differences
pertaining to:
Mat credit outstanding 35.37 186.59
Retirement benefits 161.24 117.02
Lease Liability 63.66 127.77
Depreciation 57.94 51.29
Others 138.16 24.73
456.37 507.40
Net deferred tax assets/ (liability) (net) 262.51 170.49




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 4.6
Other non-current assets
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Advance income tax paid (Net of Provision ) 508.44 456.86
Prepaid expense 0.36 0.65
Total 508.80 457.51
Note 4.7
Financial asset - Current investments
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
A. Investment in Mutual Fund
Unquoted Investment (at fair value through profit and loss)
[Tata Liquid Fund Regular Plan Growth 720.04 670.15
ABSL Liquid Fund - Growth 414.62 240.21
ABSL Money Manager Fund Growth Direct 543.35 735.84
Tata Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth 700.76 802.11
‘Total Investment in Mutal Fund (A) 2,378.77 2,448.31
B. Investment in Preference Shares
Unquoted Investment at cost
6% Series A Cum Red NCPS - Nahar Retail Trading services Limited " 2,521.30
[Total Investment in Preference Shares (B) E 2,521.30
Total 2,378.77 4,969.61
Note 4.8
Financial asset - Trade receivables
{Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Trade receivables - at amortised cost (Refer Note 6 (c ) )
Unsecured - Considered Good
Receivable from related parties 5,487.12 2,841.33
Total 5,487.12 2,841.33
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 4.9
Financial asset - Cash and cash equivalents
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Balances with banks in :
- Current accounts 329.61 143.19
- Cash in hand 1.01 1.53
Total 330.62 144.72
Note 4.10
Financial assets-loans
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Unsecured Considered good
Loans to Staff 20.03 21.65
Total 20.03 21.65
Note 4.11
Financial asset - Others
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Unsecured Considered good
Security deposits 7.92 10.15
Total 7.92 10.15
Note 4.12
Current tax assets
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Current tax assets (net) 155.49 225.64
Total 155.49 225.64
Note 4.13
Other current assets
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Prepaid expenses 112.08 227.66
Advance payment to creditors 154.48 211.45
Total 266.56 439.11
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 4.14
Equity
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
9,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 1/- each 950.00 950.00
(As at 31.03.2024 : 9,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.1 each)
38,50,00,000 Preference shares of Rs. 1 each 3,850.00 3,850.00
(As at 31.03.2024: 38,50,00,000 Preference shares of Rs. 1 each)
4,800.00 4,800.00
Ordinary shares
Issued:
213,90,259 Equity shares of Rs. 1/- each 213.90 213.90
Subscribed and paid-up:
213,90,259 Equity shares of Rs. 1/- each 213.90 213.90
(2023-24 213,90,259 Equity shares of Rs. 1/- each)
Total equity 213.90 213.90
(I) Reconciliation of share capital (Rs.in lakhs)
As At 31st March 2025 As At 31st March 2024
Issued Share capital No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Equity shares:
Number of shares at the beginning 2,13,90,259 213.90 2,13,90,259 213.90
Add Issued during the year - - - -
2,13,90.259 213.90 2,13,90.259 213.90
(ii) Details of shares holder/ Promoter holding more than 5% share as under
) As At 31st March 2025 As At 31st March 2024

% holding in % holding in
Name of Shareholder/Promoter No of shares that class of | No of shares | that class of
shares shares
Equity Shares:
[Trent Limited _213.90,259 100.00%] 213,90,259 100.00%

(iii) Terms/ rights attached to the shares

The Company has issued equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1 per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will

be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

OTHER TY (Rs.in lakhs)

. As At 31st As At 31st

Barticulars March 2025 | March 2024

Other Reserves

Capital redemption reserve 359.26 359.26
Securities premium reserve 3393.92 3393.92
General reserve 452,52 452.52
Other capital reserve (973.43) (973.43)
Capital reserve 86.99 86.99
3,319.26 3,319.26

RETAINED EARNINGS 4422.73 4443.94
Transition Reserves (61.77) (61.77)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Plans 20.62 32.89
Equity component of Compound Financial Instrument 535.56 535.56
Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 759.14 1207.41
[Total - other equ_fty 8,995.54 9,477.29
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 4.15
Long term provisions

(Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars

As At 31st March

As At 31st March

2025 2024
Provision for employee benefits- (Refer Note 11)
(I) Leave encashment 343.03 257.27
(ii) Gratuity 86.03 77.42
[Total 429.06 334.69
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FIORA BUS‘fNESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 4.16
Financial liabilities - Trade payables (Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st March| As At 31st March
= 2025 2024
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer Note 6
(a),6(b))
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 20.34 293.70
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 2,258.35 1,990.24
2,278.69 2,283.94
Note 4.17
Financial liabilities - Other financial liabilities
(Rs.in lakhs)
As At 31st As At 31st
Particulars March 2025 March 2024
Creditors for capital expenditure 70.68 84.01
Total 70.68 84.01
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 4.18
Other current liabilities
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st March| As At 31st March
2025 2024
Statutory dues 751.53 140.83
Total 751.53 140.83
Note 4.19
Short term provisions
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Provision for employee benefits- (Refer Note 11)
(i) Leave encashment 103.58 75.98
(i) Gratuity 60.00 60.00
Total 163.58 135.98
Note 4.20
Current tax liabilities (net)
(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars As At 31st As At 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Current tax liabilities (net) 8.55 8.55
Total 8.55 8.55

b
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 5.1
Revenue from operations

(Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

March 2025 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers
Income from services 23,641.70 16,691.47
‘Total 23,641.70 16,691.47
Note 5.2
Other income
(Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

March 2025 March 2024
Interest income
-Interest on loans & advances 2.30 2.63
-Interest income - tax refunds 9.00 7.52
- Interest on Security deposit measured at amortised cost 14.56 13.57
Other non-operating income
-Dividend received 190.70 11.25
-Gain on sale of current investment ( net ) 145.72 =
- Profit on sale of Assets 2.21 1.86
- Gain on Lease modification/termination - 4.21
- Miscellaneous income 1.50 0.23
-Change in the fair value of investment 273.73 161.63
‘Total 639.72 202.90
Note 5.3
Employee benefits expense
(Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

Finance cost

March 2025 March 2024
Salaries, wages and allowances 7,522.99 6,697.62
Contribution to provident and other funds 415.95 326.26
Staff welfare expenses 555.31 378.52
Total 8,494.25 7,402.40
Note 5.4

Particulars

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

March 2025 March 2024
Interest on lease liabilities 28.86 47.78
Interest - others 0.57 0.23
Interest on liability component of 8% cum. red. pref. shares -
[Total 29.43
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 5.5
Other expenses

(Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

March 2025 March 2024

Packing materials and charges 2.60 1.32
Power and fuel 67.44 51.95
Rent 8.53 15.12
Repairs and maintenance 255.25 182.37
Outsourcing charges 54.84 48.90
Business support services 56.94 56.94
Insurance 1.94 2.89
Rates and taxes 58.20 15.18
Travelling and conveyance 483.23 336.83
Printing and stationery 16.82 14.41
Security and cleaning charges 1,311.30 882.58
Bank charges 0.81 0.04
Professional and legal charges 1,291.11 895.11
Auditor's remuneration 5.18 5.81
Postage and telephone 83.81 63.77
CSR expenditure 14.40 7.48
Stickering & tagging expenses 43.34 39.56
Warehouse outsourcing expenses 9,261.90 4,981.29
Designing outsourcing expenses 75.84 99.61
Provision for doubtful Advance 26.36 =
Miscellaneous expenses 80.14 100.56
Total 13,199.98 7,801.72
Note 1:

(Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

March 2025 March 2024

Payments to the auditors comprise:

Audit fees 2.50 3.40
Other services 1.55 1.35
Out of pocket expenses 0.13 0.06
Tax Audit fees 1.00 1.00
Total 5.18 5.81
Note 5.6

Other Comprehensive Income

(Rs.In laknhs)

Particulars

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

March 2025 March 2024
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (17.31) (81.27)
(ii) Income tax on remeasurement of defined benefit plan 5.04 23.67
(iii) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (510.48) (329.40)
(iv) Income Tax on Equity instruments through Other
comprehensive income 62.21 38.78
Total (460.54) (348.22
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes farming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 6 (a) MSME Disclosure

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

MSME suppliers beyond appointed date

L
= 31st March |31st March
Particulars 2025 2024
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers as on 31st March 2025 20.34 293.70
(ii) Interest due on unpaid principal amount to MSME suppliers as on 31st March
- 0.04
2025
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with amounts of payment made to the 0.04 0.01

{iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year (without adding the
interest under MSME Development Act)

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on 31st March 2024

(vi) The amount of interest due and payable to be disallowed under Income Tax
Act, 1961

Note 6 (b) Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

As at 31st March 2025 (Rs.in lakh
Qutstanding for following periads from due date of Total
Particulars o Tan 1 payment ™ Than 3
es3iag 1-2 vears | 2-3 Years | o' than
Years Years
i) MSME 20.34 20.34
| (i) Others 2,235.96 1.02 1.95 19.42 2,258.35
i) Disputed dues - MSME - - = - -
L (iv)Disputed dues - Others - £ = = =
As at 31st March 2024 (Rs.in lakhs)
n H a Total
N Qutstanding for fallowing periods from due date of
Particulars
payment
Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
Years Years
i) MSME 293.70 - - - 293.70
(i) Others 1,967.80 20.23 0.41 1,988.44
i) Di — MSME - = < =
|_(iv)Disputed dues - Others = = = s =
Note 6 (<) Trade Receivables Ageing Schedul
As at 31st March 2025 (Rs.in lakhs)_
Particulars Qutstanding far fallowing periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 6 Months - 1 More than 3
Months Year La2)vears Za)¥ears Years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered _ _ _
good 5,487.12 5,487.12
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have N _ _ _ _
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ credit - . - - - =
impaired
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivablaes-considered E N o N - _
good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - N 5 - X -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit R 3 = _ R B
impaired
As at 31st March 2024 (Rs.in lakhs)
Qutst for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 |6 Manths -1 More than 3 Tatal
I Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years
(i) Undisputed Trade recaivables - considered B
good 2874.33* 2874.33
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have . K L L 1 R
significant increase in credit risk
(ifl) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit f y
impaired L 1 B B
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered
good B ] ) B § 5
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have l
significant increase in credit risk 3 = ) B 5
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit
impaired - 2 | b ] -

*Includes Rs.1200 Lakhs Unbilled trade receivables
Note 6 (d) Relationship with Struck Off Companies

There are no transactions which have been entered with Struck off companies and corresponding balances remaining outstanding as on

31st March 2025.

(}S__,_




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 7 - Segment information

The company is into profession of rendering various services like Accounting, Payroll, HR consultancy, Merchandise, Stock
Control, IT services, Facility Management service and other ancillary services to its parents company and other group
companies. Which in context of Indian Accounting Standard 108- "Segment Information" represent single reportable
business segment. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the accounting policies disclosed in
Note 2.

Information reported to Chief Operating Decision Maker which are at present Company ' s Board of Directors for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of services delivered /
provided / business conducted. The revenues, total expenses and net profit as per the Statement of Profit and Loss
represents the revenue, total expenses and the net profit of the sole reportable segment.

Note 8 - Related party transactions

Holding Company

Trent Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Trent Brand Limited (Merged with Nahar Retail Trading Services Limited)
Nahar Retail Trading Services Limited

Fiora Hypermarket Limited

Fiora Online Limited

Booker India Limited

Other related parties

Trent Hypermarket Private Limited

THPL Support Services Limited

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited

Tata Communications Limited

Tata Consultancy Services

Tata International Limited

Tata Teleservices
Tata Sons Private Limited

Voltas Limited

Fiora Business Support Services Limited Employee's Group Gratuity Trust
Fiora Services Limited Employees' Group Gratuity Cum Life Assurance Scheme

KMP - Directors

Mr. P. Venkatesalu (Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 1st June 2023)

Mr. Rajendra Sakalkale -Manager ( ceased to Manager w.e.f. 1st November 2023)
Ms. S.S. Kudtarkar (Director)

Mr. P. K. Anand (Director) (Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 1st September 2023)
Mr. Neeraj Basur (Director) (w.e.f. 1st September 2022)

Mr. Uday Madhukar Lad ( Director ) (w.e.f.01.09.2023)

Mr. Manish Kumar ( Director) w.e.f. 6" March 2025

(Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars Type of Transaction 2024-25 2023-24
Income from Services 22,974.58 16,303.66
Other services received 56.94 56.94
Reimbursement of expenses paid 46.76 13.09
Trent Limited Reimbursement of expenses received 5.41 7.56
Redemption of NCPRS Series B - 13.23
Dividend Paid
NCPRS Series B = 1.51
Dividend paid on Equity Share 1,850.26 -
Trent Brands Limited Re_zd_emptlon qf 'NCPRS Series B = 173.45
(Merged with Nahar Retail Tradin e e Pal
bl 9 INCPRS series B - 19.84
Services Limited)
\“eSa Sy
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Income from Services 198.12 250.17
Trent Hypermarket Private Limited [Reimbursement of expenses paid 1.95 1.05
Purchase of Goods 10.22 -
Reimbursement of expenses received 4.67 -
Trent MAS Fashion Private Limited Income from Services
( Joint Venture of Trent Limited)
13.80 -
Purchase of Goods 1.43 3.35
Booker India Limited Income from Services 32.16 83.30
Reimbursement of expenses received = 8.15
Fiora Hypermarket Limited Income from Services 3.12 3.16
THPL Support Services Limited Inc'ome from Services . 54.24 48.96
Reimbursement of expenses received ] -
Reimbursement of expenses paid = 0.20
Income from Services 365.20 1.36
Fiora Online Limited Reimbursements Paid 5.00 =
Income from Services 0.48 0.86
Investment in Preference Shares-At Cost = =
6% Conversion of Equity share to Pref. shares
series A - 2,521.30
6% Conversion of Equity share to Pref. shares
series B = 280.33
Nahar Retail Trading Service Dividend Received
Limited 6% Conversion of Equity share to Pref. shares
series A 137.35 =
6% Conversion of Equity share to Pref. shares
series B 48.84 5
6% Conversion of Equity share to Pref. shares
series A Redemption Received 2,618.28 5
pratalCammERIcStigRs" Fimited Services Received 26.99 34.73
Tata Consultancy Services Services Received 87.55 46.99
Tata Teleservices Services Received 1.24 1.10
Tata International Limited Dividend Received 4.50 11.25
‘Tata Aia Life Insurance Co. Ltd. Insurance Premium Paid 3.26 29.88
CD deposit given 2.00 5.25
TATA AIG GENERAL INSURANCE CO. |Services Utilized 0.28 .
[Tata Sons Private Limited Tata Brand Equity 0.60 S
Voltas Limited Goods Purchased 88.84 =
Services Utilized 247.39 E
Rajendra Sakalkale Managerial remuneration = 33.16
S. S. Kudtarkar Sitting Fees of Directors 1.50 2.00
P. K. Anand Sitting Fees of Directors - 1.00
Uday Madhukar Lad Sitting Fees of Directors 2.00 1.00
Outstanding receivable
Holding Company - Trent Limited 5,057.04 2,827.21
Fellow Subsidiary
Fiora Online Limited 422.24 &
Booker India Limited 3.11 7.53

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

i) The services rendered to or received and purchases or sales, if any from related parties are made on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances on account of trade receivable, trade payable, other
receivable, other payable and interest receivable on loan at the year end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. The company has given

loan to its fellow subsidiary at arms length rate of interest.
6"'5.3-\"

(ii) No provisions have been made and no amounts have been written off in respect of receivables from related par
31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024. VA
(iif) Transactions disclosed above are exclusive of all taxes, as applicable.

. N/




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
Note 9

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

. 31st March 2025|31st March 2024
Particulars

Earnings used in the calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS:

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings: (Rs. In Lakhs) 1,829.05 963.52
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic and diluted EPS 2,13,90,259 2,13,90,259
Earnings per share
- Basic (In Rs.) 8.55 4.50
- Diluted (In Rs.) 8.55 4.50

&




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 10 Ratio

S [Particular

Numerator / Denaminator

Current Ratio {In time)

Current Assets/ Current Liabilities

Ratio FY24-25
2.

% Variance

Ratio FY23-24
4 B.95%

-18. /ol

(b) | Debt-Equity Ratio {in time) Borrowing / Equity 0.02 B.05)| -47.57% |Change in ratio due to decrease in lease liabilities.
(c)| Debt Service Coverage Ratic (in time ) PAT + Depr. + Annual Interest on Loans & 8.85 2.90 205.22%|1n previous year, Series B Preference shares werd|
Liabilities/Annual interest on Loans & redeemed.
Liabllities + Repayment of Liabilities
{d)| Return an Equlty Ratio (%) [Net Profit after taxes/ Tangible Net worth 19.86%, 9.94%, 99.76%|Due to improvement in profitabllity.

{e)| Inventory Turnover Ratio { in time )

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable.

l‘ﬁevanue from operation/

Reasans for variance of mare than 25%

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (in time) 5.68 7.05 -19.45%|

(f) |Average Trade recelvable

(9)|Trade Payables Turnover Ratio {in time ) Purchases fAverage Trade payables 9.51 .23 2.99%|Not applicable

(hy| Net Capltal Turnover Ratlo ( in time ) Revenue fram operation] Working capital 4.40 2.78| 5B.13%|Due to Increase in revenue from operation.

(i}| Net Profit Ratio (%) [Net profit/ Revenue from operation 7.74% 5.77% 34.02%]Mainly due to increase in revenue from operation.
rofit before interest & Tax / Average 22.87%i 13.79% 65.84% |Due to Improvement in Profitabillty.

{i)| Return on Capital employed { % ) apital employed

(k)| Return on Investment (%) Net Profit after taxes/ Share holder equity 19.86% 9.94% 95.76%| Due to Improvement (n Profitability.




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 11 - Employee benefit plans
(a) Defined Benefit Plan
(i) Gratuity benefit

Particulars

Year ended 31st March
2025

(Bs.in lakhs)
Year ended 31st March
2024

Gratuity (Fully funded)

Gratuity (Fully funded)

LIC Administered Trust

LIC Administered Trust

Expected Employers Contribution Next Year

Defined benefit abligation as at 1st April 2024 572.46 418.30
Service cost 91.77 64.06
Net interest expense 38.69 29.80
Benefits paid (23.90) {23.95)
Past Services Cost - =
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
|Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 23.92 54.82
\Actuarial changes arising on account of experience changes 4.54 17.89
Impact of liability assumed or settled - -
Adjustment to recognise the effect of asset ceiling - -
Experience adjustments - -
Sub-total included in OCI - -
Liabilities assumed/ (settled) 31.26 11.54
Contributions by employer 2 =
Defined benefit obligation as at 31st March 2025 738.74 572.46
Fair value of plan assets as at 1st April 2024 435.04 Sl 1
Service cost = =
Net interest expense 30.96 27.13
Sub-total included in profit or loss - -
Benefits paid (23.90) (23.95)
Return on plan assets (exciuding amounts included in net interest expense) 14515, (8.57)]
/Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions = -
\Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions - S
Impact of liability assumed or settled - -
Adjustment to recognise the effect of asset ceiling = -
Experience adjustments - —
Sub-total included in OCI - -
Assets acquired /(settled) 10.72 0.72 |
Contributions by employer 128.75 87.00
Fair value of plan assets as at 31st March 2024 592.72 435.04
Net Assets and Liabilities recognised in Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 738.74 572.46
Fair value of Plan assets 592.72 435.04
Net Assets and (Liabilities)recognised in Balance sheet (146.02) (137.42)
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Service cost 91.77 64.06
Net interest expense 7.73 2.67
Past Service cost E =
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 99.50 66.73
Expenses recognised in Other comprehensive income
Opening amount recognised in Other comprehensive income 161.68 80.41
Changes in financial assumptions 23.92 54.82
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (11.15) 8.56
Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Experience adjustments 4.54 17.89
Closing amount recognised in Other comprehensive income 178.99 161.68
‘The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan
iGovernment of India Securities N.A. N.A.
Corporate Bonds N.A. N.A.
Special Deposit Scheme N.A. N.A.
Equity Shares of Listed Companies N.A. N.A.
Property N.A. N.A.
Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%
Others N.A. N.A.
Total 100% 100%
60.00 60.00

Method of valuation

Projected Unit
Credit Method

Projected Unit
Credit Method

Actuarial Assumptions

Future salary Increase

Discount Rate 6.80% 7.20%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.80% 7.20%
8.00% 8.00%

Mortality Table

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Ult Table Ult Table
. 58 Years / 58 Years /
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority , promotion and other relevant factors, such
as supply and demand in the employment market.
Towards Gratuity, during the previous year the discount rate had changed from 7.20% to 6.80% in LIC administered Trust.

Leaving service:

Rates of leaving service is 8% Leaving service due to disability is included in the provision made for all causes of leaving service.

Nature of benefits:

The gratuity benefits payable to the employees are based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The employees do not
contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these benefits are met by the Company.

Governance of the plan:

The Company has setup an income tax approved irrevocable trust fund to finance the plan liability. The trustees of the trust fund are responsible for the

overall governance of the plan.
Inherent risks:

The plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In
particular, there is a risk for the Company that any adverse salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can
result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature the plan is not subject to any

longevity risks.

Funding arrangements and policy:

The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to an insurance company. The insurance company in turn manages these
funds as per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance
regulations. Due to the restrictions in the type of investments that can be held by the fund, it is not possible to explicitly follow an asset-liability matching

strategy to manage risk actively.

There is no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully prefund the liability of the Plan. The Company's philosophy is to fund the benefits based on its
own liguidity and tax position as well as level of under funding of the plan.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

(Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars Ll AS dt
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 82.34 70.10
Between 1 - 2 years 65.58 44.47
Between 2 - 5 years 188.49 155.28
Between 5 -10 years 267.43 206.92
Beyond 10 years 873.20 714.70

The weighted average duration of payment of these cash flows is 8.32 years (As on 31st March 2024 8.26 years).

Sensitivity analysis:

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation by
one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. The foilowing table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points.

Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2025 2025 2024 2024

Amount in lakhs Discount Rate Amount in lakhs Discount Rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO (29.70) -4.02% {22.85) -3.99%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 31.84 4.31% 24.47 4.27%

Salary escalation | lati t Salary escalation Salary escalation

Amount Salagyjescalationliate Amount Amount

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO 29.54 4.00% 22.73 3.97%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO (28.10) -3.80% (21.77) -3.80%

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market
conditions at the accounting date.

i) Leave Encashment (Long Term Compensated Absences) recognised as net expense/ (gain) for the year ended 31st March 2025 is Rs.113.36 Lakhs (As on
31st March 2024 - Rs. (121.22 Lakhs)

Method of valuation and actuarial assumptions:

The Defined Benefit Obligation is calculated taking into account pattern of availment of leave whilst in service and qualifying salary on the date of availment
of leave. In respect of encashment of leave, the Defined Benefit Obligation is calculated taking into account all types of decrement and qualifying salary
projected up to the assumed date of encashment.

The above disclosure is based on actuarial valuation report. The report considers assumption with respect to discount rate, salary escalation, retirement age,

mortality, rates of leaving service, leave availment pattern and disability as mentioned above for gratuity benefit plan.

(b) Defined Contribution plans

Company Contributions during the year under Contribution Plans recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss :

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024
(Rs.in lakhs) (Rs.in lakhs)
1) Government administered provident fund/ Family pension fund 282.63 234.70
2) Employees state insurance/ Labor welfare fund 1.40 2.79
284.03 237.50

Total

=




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 12

Commitments and contingencies

a) Contingent liabilities

i. Disputed tax demands

Contingent liabilities in respect of income tax matters is Rs.173.02 lakhs (2023-2024 :Rs.173.02 lakhs) Commercial Tax officer

Delhi Vat & CST Rs.10.10 lakhs ( 2023-24: Rs.10.10 lakhs)

b. Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (tangible and intangible assets) and not provided for
Rs. NIL Lakhs ( Previous Year Rs. 199.02 Lakhs)

Note 13 - Categorization of financial instruments:

The classification of financial assets and liabilities by accounting categorisation is as follows:

(Rs.in lakhs)

Fair value

Other

Fair value

Total carrying

ganticulang Weaienter through P&L | amortised cost| through OCI amount
Non current financial assets
Non current investment 31st March 2025 2,230.02 2,230.02
31st March 2024 2,740.50 2,740.50
Financial assets-loans 31st March 2025 27.55 27.55
31st March 2024 38.02 38.02
Other financial assets 31st March 2025 172.70 172.70
31st March 2024 152.50 152.50
Current financial assets
Current investments 31st March 2025 2,378.77 2,378.77
31st March 2024 4,969.61 4,969.61
Trade receivables 31st March 2025 5,487.12 5,487.12
31st March 2024 2,841.33 2,841.33
Cash and bank balances 31st March 2025 330.62 330.62
31st March 2024 144.72 144.72
Financial assets-loans 31st March 2025 20.03 20.03
31st March 2024 21.65 21.65
Other financial assets 31st March 2025 7.92 7.92
31st March 2024 10.15 10.15
31st March 2025 2,378.77 6,045.94 2,230.02 10,654.73
'okal 31st March 2024 4,969.61 3,208.37 2,740.50 10,918.48
Other non-current Liabilities 31st March 2025 35.79 35.79
31st March 2024 218.63 218.63
Trade payables 31st March 2025 2,278.69 2,278.69
31st March 2024 2,283.94 2,283.94
Other current financial liabilities 31st March 2025 253.52 253.52
31st March 2024 304.17 304.17
Total 31st March 2025 2,568.00 2,568.00
31st March 2024 2,806.74 2,806.74

&—




Note 14- Fair Value Measurement

Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

(Rs.in lakhs)

. Fair value as " Valua_tion
Financial assets/ financial Fair value as at at 31st March Fair value technique(s)
liabilities 31st March 2025 2024 hierarchy and key
input(s)
Investment in mutual fund 2,378.77 4,969.61 |FVTPL Quoted NAV

Additionai details for investments measured based on Level 2 inputs are as follows:

The Company has measured its investment in TATA International Limited based on Level 2 inputs as mentioned in Ind AS 113 Fair

Value Measurement.

Fair valuation is arrived on the basis of valuation report from independent valuer.

The impact of investments measured based on level 2 inputs and recognised in other comprehensive income of respective years is

as follows:
Rs Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2025 |31 March 2024
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (510.48) (329.40)
Net gain / (losses) recognised in profit and loss on account of :
Rs Lakhs
31 March 2025 (|31 March 2024
Financial assets at fair value 273.73 161.63
Financial assets at amortised cost 14.56 13.57
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (28.86) (47.78)

Fair value of financial assets measured at amortised cost

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets/liabilities recognised in the financial statements at amortised

cost approximate their fair values.




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 15
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company'’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s risk management
policy is approved by the Board/ Board’s Committee. The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include
loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations and investment.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk , liquidity risk etc. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these
risks. The Company’s senior management is overseen by the Board with respect to risks and facilitates appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Company. Financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.
It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing key risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments and derivative financial instruments.

The company manages market risk through a treasury department at Group level, which evaluates and exercises control over the entire process
of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk management objectives and policies, which are approved by senior
management. The activities of this department include management of cash resources, borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with
market risk limit and policies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Interest rate change does not significantly affect short term borrowing and current and non-current investment of the Company.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks , financial
institutions and other parties, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The company is not exposed to significant concentrations of credit risk as policies are in place to cover its operation where fees are received from
related parties and are primarily received through online payments. The company adopts prudent criteria in its investment policy, the main
objectives of which are to reduce the credit risk associated with investment products and the counterparty risk associated with financial
institutions. In relation to credit risk arising from commercial transactions, impairment losses are recognized for trade receivables when objective
evidence exists that the company will be unable to recover all the outstanding amounts in accordance with the original contractual conditions of
receivables. All financial receivables of the Company are from related parties and the company does not foresee any credit risk in the
recoverability of these amounts.

Liquidity risk

The Company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well settlement management. In addition, the related policies and
processes are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's net iiquidity position through rolling forecast on the basis
of expected cash flow.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities and assets based on contractual undiscounted maturities:

(Rs.in lakhs)
Year Ended 31st March 2025 <1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Financial assets measured at fair value
through Profit and loss
Current investment 2,378.77 = - 2,378.77
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Non current
Financial assets-loans 2/ ZJ a0
Other financial assets 172.70 172.70
Current
Trade receivable 5,487.12 = = 5,487.12
Cash and cash equivalent 330.62 = g 330.62
Financial assets-loans 20.03 20.03
Other financial assets 7.92 B 3 7.92
Total 8,224.46 200.25 - 8,424.71

(5,_




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(Rs.in lakhs)
Year Ended 31st March 2024 <1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Financial assets measured at fair value
through Profit and loss
Current investment 4,969.61 = = 4,969.61

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Non current

Financial assets-loans 38.02 38.02
Other financial assets 152.50 152.50
Current

Trade receivable 2,841.33 - 2,841.33
Cash and cash equivalent 144.72 = - 144.72
Financial assets-loans 21.65 = 21.65
Other financial assets 10.15 - - 10.15
Total 7,987.46 190.52 - 8,177.98

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

(Rs.in lakhs)
Year Ended 31st March 2025 <1 year 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost
Lease Liabilities 182.84 35.79 218.63
Trade and other Payables 2,258.35 = E 2,258.35
Other current financial liabilities D - - =
Total 2,441.19 35.79 - 2,476.98
(Rs.in lakhs)
Year Ended 31st March 2024 <1 year 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost
Lease liabilities 220.16 218.63 438.79
Trade and other Payables 1,990.24 - - 1,990.24
Other current financial liabilities - - - -
Total 2,210.40 218.63 - 2,429.03

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or
have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or
given set of counter parties.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance
of a reasonably diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder
value while providing stable capital structure that facilitates considered risk taking and pursued of business growth.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and business opportunities.

Debt Equity Ratio : -The debt equity ratio at the end of reporting period is as follows:

(Rs.in lakhs)
31st March
Particular | 315t March 20251 77,554
Borrowing 218.62 438.78
Total equity 9,209.44 9,691.19
Debt equity ratio 2% 5%
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 16

The majar components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st March 2025 are:

Components of tax expenses /(Income) includes the following:

Current income tax charge
MAT credit for the year

Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Excess)/short provision for tax of earlier years

Incame tax expense reported in the statement of profit or lass
Income tax relating to other comprehensive income

Unrealised (gain)/loss on FVTOCI equity securities

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Income tax expense charged to OCI

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
554.30 329.05
(176.00) 37.02
378.30 366.07

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
62.21 38.78
5.04 23.67
67.25 62.45

by India’s domestic tax rate for 31st March

;2025

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs

Accounting profit before income tax s 2,207.35 1,329.59
India’s statutory income tax rate 29.12% 27.82%
Computed tax Expenses 642.78 369.89
Excess / short provision for tax for earlier years - -
MAT credit for the year - -
(Other adjustment as per tax applicable tax provisions (264.48) (3.82)
At the effective incame tax rate of 17.14% 27.53%
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 378.30 366.07

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax relates to the following:

Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet

Profit & Loss |

Profit & Loss

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs Rs, in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Fair valuation of Investments 169.96 265.58 (33.41) 48.27
Right of Use Assets as per Ind AS 116 23.90 71.33 (47.43) (47.76)
Other Provisions 5 = = =
Deferred Tax Assets
Mat Credit Outstanding 3B.37 186.59
Lease Liability as per Ind AS 116 63.66 127.77 64.11 55.69
Retirement Benefits = 161.24 117.02 (39.18) (19.94)
Depreciation 57.94 51.29 (6.65) (0.63)
Business loss - - = =
‘Other Provisions 138.16 24.73 (113.43) 1.40
Deferred tax expense/{income) (175.99) 37.03
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 262.51 170.49

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets / (iiabilities) presented i

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

n the statement of financial position

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

Deferred tax assets, net

Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
456.37 507.40
193.86 336.91
262.51 170.49

Note 17
Code an Social Security, 2020:

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post- employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The
Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact after the Code becomes effective.

&




Note 18
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure: FY 2024-25
(i) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is Rs. 14.35 Lakhs
(ii) Amount spent during the year on:
(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

|(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset E
(ii) on purpose other than (i) above 14.40 - 14.40

{iii) Shortfall at the end of the year: Nil

(iv) Total of previous years shortfall: Nil

(v) Reason for shortfall,: NA

(vi) Nature of CSR activities:

The CSR activity focus areas are education, employment, employability
and other key allied social initiatives.

(vii) Details of related party transactions: N.A

(vii) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision
during the year should be shown separately: NA

Corparate Social Responsibility Expenditure:- FY 2023-24
(i) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is Rs. 7.20Lakhs

(ii) Amount spent during the year on:
(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

(i) Construction/acguisition of any asset z =
[(il) on purpose other than (i) above 7.48 - 7.48

{iii) Shortfall at the end of the year: Nil

(iv) Total of previous years shortfall: Nil

(v) Reason for shortfall,: NA

(vi) Nature of CSR activities:

The CSR activity focus areas are education, employment, employability
and other key allied social initiatives.

(vii) Details of related party transactions: N.A

(vii) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision
during the year should be shown separately: NA

Note 19
The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For V.P. Thacker & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 118696W =

’%_%,Q,L - lem Uday Madhukar Lad Director

(DIN :08075742)

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner (M. No. 108053)

Place : Mumbai

Date : 23rd April 2025
Neeraj Basur Director

(DIN : 00402617)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23rd April 2025
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